
MEETING OF THE CITY OF RIDGECREST INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
1ST FLOOR CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE ROOM AREA B

Thursday March 24, 2016 at 5:00 pm

Committee Members: Chair Mike Mower, Vice Chair Matt Baudhuin
Vice Mayor James Sanders Planning Commissions Warren Cox
Staff: Dennis Speer, Loren Culp
Recording Secretary: Karen Harker

AGENDA
Meeting – 5:00 p.m.

This meeting room is wheelchair accessible. Accommodations and access to City meetings for
people with other handicaps may be requested of the City Clerk (499-5002) five working days in

advance of the meeting.

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
 January 21, 2016
 February 25, 2016

PUBLIC COMMENT OF ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

DISCUSSION AND OTHER ACTION ITEMS

Discussion of the Retention Basin at Norma Street and Felspar Avenue
 Preliminary Investigation

COMMITTEE COMMENTS

SUPPORT STAFF COMMENTS

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

NEXT MEETING:
 April 28, 2016

ADJOURNMENT:

Infrastructure Committee March 24, 2016 Page 1



Infrastructure Committee Meeting                                            January 21, 2016 pg. 1

MEETING OF THE CITY OF RIDGECREST INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
1ST FLOOR CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE ROOM AREA B

Thursday January 21, 2016 at 5:00 pm

Committee Members: Chair Mike Mower, Vice Chair Matt Baudhuin
Vice Mayor James Sanders Planning Commissions Warren Cox
Staff: Dennis Speer, Loren Culp
Recording Secretary: Karen Harker

DRAFT MINUTES
Meeting – 5:00 p.m.

This meeting room is wheelchair accessible. Accommodations and access to City meetings for
people with other handicaps may be requested of the City Clerk (499-5002) five working days in

advance of the meeting.

CALL TO ORDER: Meeting was called to order 5:15

ROLL CALL Mayor Pro Tem James Sanders, Planning Commissioner Warren Cox, Mayor
Peggy Breeden
Absent: Chair Mike Mower, Vice Chair Matt Baudhuin
Staff: Dennis Speer, Public Works Director; Loren Culp, City Engineer
Recording Secretary: Karen Harker

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Motion To Approve the Agenda Was Made By Commissioner Mr. Cox, Seconded by Ms. Breeden.
Motion Carried By Voice Vote of 3 Ayes (Cox, Sanders, Breeden) 0 Nays, 2 Absent (Mower,
Baudhuin) 0 Abstain

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Motion To Approve the Minutes of December 17, 2015 was Made By Commissioner Cox,
Seconded by Ms. Breeden. Motion Carried By Voice Vote of 3 Ayes (Cox, Sanders, Breeden) 0
Nays, 2 Absent (Mower, Baudhuin) 0 Abstain

PUBLIC COMMENT OF ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Public Comment Opened at 5:18 pm

Gary Allred asked if the Ridgecrest Boulevard Project has been closed and what was the final
cost. Mr. Speer indicated that staff would need to bring this item back to the committee at a later
date. Staff is unable to comment at this time.

Mr. Allred also asked what is happening with the ADA compliance on Ridgecrest Boulevard.
o L Culp – explained the schedule of the funding for the ADA Compliance with the Kern



Infrastructure Committee Meeting                                            January 21, 2016 pg. 2

County Community Development Block Grant (CDBG).  Mr. Culp indicated this is a long
and tedious process with approved schedules, approval of contracts, going out for
Request for Proposals.  It is necessary for the City of Ridgecrest to create and establish a
Transition Plan to continue to receive federal funding.  This is what the previous Council
had allocated the CDBG funds be used for.   It could take up to two years before we see
any construction take place on the corridor.

o W. Cox – I don’t think that we should wait two years for the transition plans for our ADA
citizens.

o D Speer – Discussed his meeting with District 6 based on the drainage by the bulb-outs
and not anything related to ADA compliance. He received a response stating if the City
needed to make minor alterations/modifications to address drainage or traffic operations
of the corridor, the City can do so at their own expense without any special approvals.
Hydraulic flow-line adjustments could likely fit in the minor category.  If the City would like
to make major alterations / modifications, such as removing bulb-outs or center islands,
you may have to pay back part or all of the Federal Funding. These major
alterations/modifications could be subjective, but essentially the original scope and intent
of the project needs to be maintained.

o W. Cox – I would be ok with this if we made sure that Ridgecrest Boulevard was still the
number one priority with making the ADA compliance changes.

o J. Sanders – was concerned about the parking by the bulb-out
o D. Speers – we would mark 10-12 feet in red for no parking
o G. Allred – would the property owners who pulled a permit to fix the drive approaches and

walkways be exempt of fees
o J. Sanders – no that would not be something that could be done by staff only by City

Council
o G. Allred – I think you have opened a can of worm by putting in bulb-outs that no one

wanted instead of doing ADA compliant ramps and drive approaches.
o D. Speer – how does the federal law apply to this area.  It was on the recommendation of

Caltrans not to do the drive approaches and sidewalk.
o G. Allred – there was a separate source of funding for the ADA requirements for the

Ridgecrest Boulevard Project.

Mr. Allred was informed that there was not a separate source of funding and the only funding the
City had was Federal Funds. The City used their maximum effort that allows the City to comply
to reach the requirement,

There was discussion by the committee that it didn’t seem fair that some of the business received
new drive approaches and ADA curb ramps while others didn’t.

Public Comment Closed at 5:45 pm

DISCUSSION AND OTHER ACTION ITEMS

 New Murray Middle School Traffic Circulation

Loren Culp refreshed the committee of their decision to move forward with funding the
New Murray Middle School Traffic Circulation.  Staff has researched the funding sources
available to do the project and recognized four sources:
Tax Allocation Bonds – would need to take from another project or from the unallocated
funds of around 800K.  Going before Council very soon will be a report asking for 100K on



Infrastructure Committee Meeting                                            January 21, 2016 pg. 3

the Downs Widening Project to Southern California Edison to remove poles.
Regional Surface Transportation Projects – the City receives these funds from Kern
Council of Governments and can be up to a funding amount of 600K.  Using these funds
would take away from other street projects
Community Development Block Grant Funds - 130 K every year. The City would be
eliminating our funding source for ADA compliance issues.  Also would have to roll a fiscal
year and advance a fiscal year to come up with the funding.  We would still be short.
Traffic Impact Fees - 1.3 million are in this account and it is my recommendation to use
this funding source for doing the project.  It is the most appropriate.

o D Speer – I agree with Mr. Culp that this is the funding source to take the funds
from for the project.  He wanted the committee to also realize that before the
dissolution of RDA the Engineering Division would use this source of funding for
the matching funds on State and Federal Projects.

Several committee members asked and discussed how much was the cost estimate to do
the improvements around the new school.

o L Culp – $490,000.00
o D. Speer - can we design this project in house instead of going out to a consultant
o L Culp – I feel we have a good study by a traffic engineer, and then the plans and

specifications need to be signed.  I am not well versed in traffic engineering that I
would feel comfortable in signing the plans.

There was discussion about if Mr. Speer could act as the Traffic Engineer and if this
project would be able to be done in house.

o W. Cox – SSUSD hired a traffic engineer.  Shouldn’t the City be able to indicate
what the City intends for improvement and sign it off and send it over for design to
their traffic engineer? They already have him retained and this would help with the
cost.

o L Culp – explained this was discussed and that the traffic engineer and any
funding (federal) for the school could not be used for street improvements.

o J Sander – what are the improvements for the school
o L Culp – raised medians with fence, acceleration/deceleration lanes, and turn

pockets
o D Speer – wanted to raise awareness that the City used to submit all applications

at our cost to the State and Federal funding agencies to do the Safe Routes to
School Projects for them by putting in curb, gutter and sidewalk.  This is not the
responsibility of the City but the responsibility of each School District to provide a
safe route of travel for their students.

o W. Cox – explained the reason for doing this project was for the public safety of
doing the road. We need public participation and buy-in to this project so that
when we do the project, our community and citizen aren’t asking why we are going
this project instead of paving streets.  The District stated that they are willing to
hold public hearing and send flyer home with students so that the parents are well
aware of what is going on.  I would like to make a recommendation to:

1) put aside the funds from Traffic Impact Fees
2) don’t start the project until the New Murray Middle School Project starts
3) talk to the District and ask them to have the engineer sign off on the entire

traffic circulation design.



Infrastructure Committee Meeting                                            January 21, 2016 pg. 4

o D Speer – explained the difference between traffic impact and traffic analysis
reports

 Water Ordinance - Discussion of Water Ordinance prepared by City Attorney

o Comments and/or revision
o Madam Mayor – Can we please add in our new Ordinance the language from the

Ordinance 100 from the Indian Wells Valley Water District that includes the hours
and days for November through March of each year.

o Sofia Merk – are we under the State Model Ordinance now

The City Council adopted the State Model Ordinance by default when they did not pass
an ordinance by the end of the year.

o D. Speer – direction from the council was to make the ordinance more user
friendly.

o W. Cox – unfunded mandate from the state with the model ordinance.
o D. Speer – provide an ordinance that is user friendly
o S Ratorja – would like to see the City approve the State Model Ordinance from the

State.  This way when the State makes changes, we will not have to go back and
make changes to ours.

o D. Speer – the City cannot adopt this ordinance until the State Department of
Water and Power approves it or we can just adopt the State Model.  This
ordinance just happens to be user friendly.  We will be under the State Model
Ordinance until ours is approved and adopted.

o L Culp – had questions regarding the language in the model ordinance
o D. Speer – explained that regulations are the State Model Ordinance and that our

Ordinance is just referring back to the State.  This Ordinance can be handed out to
the public in its simplest form and if there are further questions, staff can refer to
the State Model.

o Motion was made by Madam Mayor to approve the Water Ordinance as prepared
by the City Attorney with the changes of the language to include the Indian Wells
Water District Ordinance 100 regarding hours and days for November through
March. Seconded by Mr. Cox, carried with a Vote of 3 Aye (Sanders, Cox, Breeden)
0 Nays, 2 Absent (Mower, Baudhuin), 0 Abstain

 Update on Downs Widening Project

Loren Culp explained to the Committee a protest letter was being crafted with the attorney
and a staff report will go before City Council on February 3 or 17. Discussed the issue of
the intersection of Downs Street and West Ridgecrest Boulevard and raised the issue of
transmission and distribution poles. Southern California Edison (SCE) has agreed to
remove one pole and move the other pole. Mr. Culp and Mr. Speer did a field review and
found that by removing one pole, SCE could eliminate three other poles. Loren discussed
this review with SCE and they were not receptive to the idea.

We are still moving forward with the $100,000.00 to get the engineering started and right
of way acquisitions.  We want this project shovel ready for any funding that might be
available.



Infrastructure Committee Meeting                                            January 21, 2016 pg. 5

Mr. Cox made a recommendation that the City finds out the attorney who litigated in the
case of Livermore and contact the firm to discuss our situation.

Both Mr. Culp and Mr. Speer thought that this was an excellent idea and will pursue this
avenue.

COMMITTEE COMMENTS

SUPPORT STAFF COMMENTS

Loren Culp commented on these projects:

 Capital Improvement Road Design for 2016 – received Request for Proposals and will be
awarding contract in the next few City Council Meetings.

 Bowman Traffic Signal – Bids were opened and are being reviewed by Willdan
Engineering for the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.  The apparent low bid was
A-C Electric

 Transit garage – Will be getting started in February.  The Corporation Yard Project is
coming to an end

 Walmart – double inspections, they are moving along quite well

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

 Downs Street Widening Project
 Changes to the Bulb-outs on Ridgecrest Boulevard
 Community Development Block Grant – ADA Transition Plan
 Change of Special meeting 4th Thursday

NEXT MEETING:
 February 18, 2016

ADJOURNMENT: Meeting was adjourned at 7:40 pm



MEETING OF THE CITY OF RIDGECREST INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
1ST FLOOR CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE ROOM AREA B

Thursday February 25, 2016 at 5:30 pm

Committee Members: Chair Mike Mower, Vice Chair Matt Baudhuin
Vice Mayor James Sanders Planning Commissions Warren Cox
Staff: Dennis Speer, Loren Culp
Recording Secretary: Karen Harker

Draft Minutes of the Special Meeting
Meeting – 5:30 p.m.

This meeting room is wheelchair accessible. Accommodations and access to City meetings for
people with other handicaps may be requested of the City Clerk (499-5002) five working days in

advance of the meeting.

CALL TO ORDER: Meeting was called to order at 5:35

ROLL CALL: Chair Mike Mower, Vice Chair Matt Baudhuin, Planning Commissions Warren Cox
Absent: Vice Mayor James Sanders

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Motion To Approve the Agenda Was Made By Planning
Commissioner Cox, Seconded by Mr. Baudhuin. Motion Carried By Voice Vote of 3 Ayes
(Mower, Cox, Baudhuin) 0 Nays, 1 Absent (Sanders), 0 Abstain

Mr. Sanders arrived late after roll call, the approval of the agenda, and the discussion item had
already been voted on.

PUBLIC COMMENT OF ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

No public comment

DISCUSSION AND OTHER ACTION ITEMS

 Discussion of Moving the Date of the Infrastructure Committee Meetings

The Chair Mower indicated that Madam Mayor Breeden has asked him to attend the Kern
Council of Government meetings and they happen to fall on the third Thursday of each
month.  We are here tonight to set a new date.  I feel that the fourth Thursday would work
as it does not interfere with any other meetings.

Motion made by Commissioner Cox that the Infrastructure Committee changes the regularly
scheduled meeting from the third Thursday of each month at 5:00 pm to the fourth Thursday of
each month at 5:00 pm. Seconded by Planning Commission Bauhduin. Motion Carried By Voice
Vote of 3 Ayes (Mower, Cox, Baudhuin) 0 Nays, 1 Absent (Sanders), 0 Abstain



COMMITTEE COMMENTS

Planning Commission Cox asked about the Downs Street Project –
Discussed the Downs Street project and where the City is at. Once SCE gets their One Hundred
Thousand Dollar ($100,000) check, the design is eighteen months.  They didn’t take that long on
the West Ridgecrest Boulevard Project but it was nine months.  They have done some
preliminary design on the Downs Street Project (Mark Gowin) so they have a head start and we
might see the design somewhere within the nine to eighteen months.

Two items are going before City Council.  On March 3rd a Change Order to the Original Contract
in the amount of Thirty-Eight Thousand Dollars and some change to Willdan Engineering will be
presented.  This is for the right-of-way (plat maps, legal descriptions), the drive approach into
Mather Brothers Dairy and also to have lighting put along the median.

The 2nd item will be on the City Council Agenda for March 16th.  The Attorney has review the SCE
Contract and crafted a protest letter to be attached to the Contract.  We will then get the One
Hundred Thousand Dollar ($100,000) check out to SCE to start the design.

The potential funding options right now is Tax Allocation Bond Funds (TAB), either from the
funds not being used completely by the Wal-Mart Project or funds left from the West Ridgecrest
Boulevard Project.  The West Ridgecrest Boulevard Project has not been completely closed out
and we don’t know the exact dollar value remaining.  The third source is the Regional Surface
Transportation Program through Kern Cog.  We have submitted an application and should hear
something in the next three to four months.

SUPPORT STAFF COMMENTS

Loren Culp, City Engineer:

Wal-Mart is going to be doing work at the intersection of Bowman Road.  Work will begin next
Wednesday.  Contractor has been instructed to notify all personnel, Police, Transit, Fire,
Ambulance, School District. The Contract expects this to be a two week period of work in two
phases.  Eastside first of the intersection and parts of the roadway will be done; then going to the
Westside of the intersection.  There will always be one lane open for traffic.

The reason they are doing this work is potholing for utilities.  The City had old as-builts drawing
and they found when doing work on the eastside of the roadway of South China Lake Boulevard
they were coming across utilities (mostly from Digital 395).  Before moving forward and
completely redoing the Bowman Channel they would like to know what it is they are working with.

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Possible design of the Norma Street Sump – preliminary investigating

NEXT MEETING:
 March 24, 2016

ADJOURNMENT: Meeting was adjourned at 5:54

Infrastructure Committee February 25, 2016 Page 1


























